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Mr. Easley asked, •You have suggested and they have agreed that 
18 ft. of travel way is adequate?• 

Mr. Morley said, •That is what the existing rock is. We don't 
have anything set out for these things that go long distances 
n 

Commissioner Willner said •we don't maintain them so we don't 
tell them what to do. But there is enough right-of-way?• 

Mr. Morley said, •oh yes -- 50 ft. of right-of-way. If they want 
to widen this out at some time and your standards are 30 ft., 
they can widen it out and come in and say it is ready to accept -
and then the Commissioners could do it. But at this point in 
time they want a sign there •private Drive•. 

Mrs. Cunningham said, •private or public, they would still have 
to either put the improvements in and be approved or have 
financial security to make sure ••••• • 

Mr. Easley asked, •could this ever be extended to a 3rd Phase? 

Mr. Morley said he doesn't know. The waiver they are talking 
about is -- they don't want to have to put the curbs on1 they 
don't want to put sidewalks on it and they don't want to make it 
24 ft. wide -- they just want it 18 ft. wide. He will formally 
request that Right now, he is just seeking guidance. 

Commissioner Borries asked if it already comes out on Darmstadt 
Rd.? 

Mr. Morley said that it does. His extension is back in the 
woods. 

The Chair entertained further matters of business. There being 
none, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 4:50 
p.m. 

PRESENT: 

SECRETARY: 

COMMISSIONERS 

R. J. Borries 
R. L. Willner 
s. J. Cox 

COUNTY HIGHWAY 

Bill Bethel 

AREA PLAN 

B. Cunningham 

OTHER 

COUNTY AUDITOR 

Sam Humphrey 

COUNTY ENGINEER 

Andy Easley 

SHERIFF 

c. Shepard 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

David Miller 

EUTS 

Rose Zigenfus 

BLDG. COMMISSION 

Roger Lehman 

Susan Cox/Albion Fellows Bacon Center 
Katheryn Mayes/Poor Relief Applicant 
Mary Hart/Pigeon Trustee's Office 
Donna Jones/Pigeon Trustee's Office 
Jim Morley/Morley & Associates 
News Media 

Joanne A. Matthews 



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
April 13, 1987 

Page 26 

~I 

I 

I 

-



I 

MINUTES 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

APRIL' 20,.1987 

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at 
7:30 p.m. on Monday, April 20, 1987 in the Commissioners Hearing 
Room, with President Rick Borries presiding. 

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who 
subsequently entertained a motion concerning approval of the 
minutes of the previous meeting. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the minutes of the 
meeting held on Monday, April 13th, be approved as engrossed by 
the County Auditor and the reading of same be waived, with a 
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

It was announced by President Borries that the Board of 
Commissioners met in Executive·Session at 5:00p.m. today for the 
purpose of receiving information concerning several matters of 
litigation and also strategy as per County Attorney in relation 
to those suits. That meeting was held and he wants to 
acknowledge it at this time for the record. 

RE: REZONING PETITIONS 

Since there were several persons in the audience, President 
Borries said he will announce those Rezoning Petitions which have 
been continued so that any persons who are here who wish to speak 
in behalf of or remonstrate concerning some of the 3rd Readings 
will know that they have been continued. Continued items are: 

VC-27-86 - Edward Will. Et al (Withdrawn) 
VC-3-87 - Harvey Klenck (Continued to May 18, 1987) 
VC-5-87 - Jeffrey s. Kempf (Continued to May 18, 1987) 

Item #8 on the agenda (Application for Driveway Permit/Hermus A. 
Lewis)has been continued to May 11, 1987. 

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO OPEN BIDS RE HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME 

President Borries said that subject to the Commission's approval, 
proposals will be opened concerning management of 
Hillcrest-Washington Children's Home. Once this is done, the 
Board will take the matter under advisement this evening and a 
meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, April 23rd, at 2:30 p.m. 
in Room 303. This will be a joint meeting with the Vanderburgh 
County Council re the Hillcrest-Washington Children's Home and 
other business. They will have this evening and the next two 
days to read through these proposals. He would ask that the 
Commission be prepared,of course, to answer any questions and 
also to consider a vote at that time for management proposal. 
Once these materials are opened they will also be made available 
to the Vanderburgh County council for their review and any 
questions they might have at the April 23rd meeting. 

The Chair proceeded by ent.ertaining a motion to authorize County 
Attorney Curt John to open the proposals and announce at this 
time whether said proposals meet the specifictions published by 
Vanderburgh County and to read the names of subject proposals 
into the record. It was noted that four (4) proposals had been 
received. 

Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Willner, with a 
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 
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The Chair said there are several rezonings to be considered on 
1st Reading this evening. These matters are introduced as a 
formality at the Vanderburgh County Commission for their record. 
The Commissioners comments can be made or their questions 
answered at this time. They are subsequently forwarded to the I 
Area Plan Commission. The APC will meet May 6th for their 
monthly meeting and action upon said petitions (2nd Reading). 
They will then return to the County Commission for final or 3rd 
Reading on May 18th. 

VC-6-87/Petitioner, Colonial Garden Center: Common address of 
property is 8001 Lincoln Avenue. current zoning is C-4 and 
requested zoning is R-1. The property is currently vacant and 
proposed use is for single-family residential subdivision. 

The Chair asked if anyone is present who wishes to speak to this 
rezoning? There was no response. The Chair then asked if any 
remonstrants are present? There was no response. The Chair then 
asked for comments from the Commission. 

In response to query from Commissioner Borries, Ms. Beverly Behme 
of the Area Plan Commission stated that this is a court-ordered 
settlement of a subdivision. It is at the instruction of the 
Superior Court that the petitioner is requesting the down zoning 
of 6.67 acres from C-4 to R-1 to develop a single family 
residential subdivision (Geengate Court). Single family 
residences are not an allowable use in a C-4 zone. 

President Borries said that for the record, Ms. Behme's 
explanation entered into the record refers to a subdivision that ·1 
this Commission heard last year. There were about ten (10) 
conditions in the court record and this down zoning was one of 
them. 

Motion to approve vc-6-87 on First Reading and forward to Area 
Plan Commission was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second 
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

VC-7-87/Petitioner, Robert Brenner: Common known address is 9225 
Hedden Rd. Property is currently zoned Agricultural and 
requested zoning is M-1. Property is currently used for office 
and fabrication of aluminum windows. Petitioner proposed to 
develop an industrial subdivision. A non-commercial zoning use 
permit was obtained in 1982 for construction of a workshop and 
building to store agriculture equipment. 

The Chair asked if anyone is present who wishes to speak 
concerning this rezoning? There was no response. 

The Chair then asked if anyone wishes to remonstrate concerning 
this petition? There was no response. A motion was entertained. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-7-87 be approved 
on First Reading and forwarded to Area Plan Commission, with a 
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

VC-8-87/ Petitioner, John s. McCullough: Common known address of 
subject property is 11911 N. Green River Rd. Petitioner is 
seeking change from Agricultural to C-4 zoning. Land is 
currently vacant and the proposed use is possible garden center. 
Property is on the east side of N. Green River Rd. at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Boonville-New Harmony and 
N. Green River Rd. 

In response to query from Commissioner Cox. Ms. Behme of Area 
Plan said EUTS has not had an opportunity to write their report 
yet, but it will be available prior to the APC meeting. 

I 
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Commissioner Borries queried Ms. Behme concerning the correct 
name of the owner (Fehn). Ms. Behme confirmed that this is 
correct. Commissioner Borries said he was unaware of the c-4 
zoning immediately south of the subject property and, as pointed 
out by Commissioner Cox, the reason he had a question on this was 
that we have undertaken plans to relocate a portion of 
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. as it would connect with the I-164 
project. He thought the "Fehds" were affected property owners, 
but it was confirmed that they are further back. The Chair asked 
if anyone is present who wishes to speak to this rezoning? There 
was no response. The Chair asked if there is anyone present who 
wishes to remonstrate concerning vc-8-87? There was no response. 
The Chair entertained a motion. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that vc-7-87 be approved 
on First Reading and forwarded to Area Plan Commission, .with a 
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

VC-9-87/Petitioner, Thomas Duncan: Common known address of 
subject property is 5701 Oak Hill Rd. Land is currently zoned 
Agricultural and R-1 and requests rezoning of 81.01 acres to 
P.U.D. Current land use is one single family residence and 
vacant farm land and proposed land use is P.U.D (commercial, 
single-family & condominiums). 

Commissioner Cox noted that the petitioner is requesting that 
almost seven (7) acres be commercial and two and a half (2-1/2) 
acres commercial-medical along Oak Hill Rd. 

Commissioner Borries addressed Ms. Behme and asked if Area Plan 
or the Board of Commissioners could at some time change the 
make-up of this P.U.D. subject to approval -- is that correct? 
There can be some changes ••••• 

Ms. Behme said there can be very minor changes once it is 
approved. When they come back for their Site Development Plan, 
the APC has· jurisdiction. 

Commissione~ Borries asked, "But, subject to approval, there can 
be some changes made in that?" 

Ms Behme responded, "Absolutely, yes." 

The Chair asked if anyone is present who wishes to speak 
regarding VC-9-87? There was no response. The Chair then asked 
if there is anyone who wishes to remonstrate concerning VC-9-87? 
There was no response. The Chair entertained a motion. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-9-87 be approved 
on First Reading and forwarded to APC, with a second from 
Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

VC-10-87/Petitioner, w. c. Bussing, Jr.: Common known address is 
1701 Waterworks Rd. owner of subject property is Evansville 
Materials. Present zoning is w-1 (Waterfront Industrial) and 
requested change is to P.U.D. The land is currently vacant and 
proposed use is a P.U.D.(Planned Unit Development/residential 
use). Commissioner Borries asked why they are going for a 
P.U.D.? Is it zero lot lines? 

Ms. Behme responded that this is correct. 

President Borries said that because of the kind of housing that 
has been proposed, they have chosen a P.U.D. Area Plan would 
then scrutinize very carefully each stage of this development. 
The Chair then asked if anyone is present to speak concerning 
this petition? There was no response. The Chair then asked if 
there is anyone to remonstrate concerning VC-20-87? Again, there 
was no response. 
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Commissioner Cox said she notes this proposed development is 
within the 100-year flood plain. The Staff Field Report does 
indicate that City water is available. Is sanitary sewer 
available in that area? They certainly couldn't have septic 
tanks out there. Ms. Behme confirmed that 8 inch sanitary sewer 
line is available. 

Commissioner Borries commented that this one is about as close to 
Kentucky as you can get. The Chair entertained a motion. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-10-87 be approved 
on First Reading and forwarded to Area Plan, with a second from 
Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

RE: PROPOSALS RE HILLCREST-WASHINGTON CHILDREN'S HOME 

President Borries asked whether county Attorney Curt John has 
finished studying the proposals?· 

Attorney John said, as mentioned by Commissioner Borries, the 
Board will be taking the proposals under advisement. He has, 
however, opened the four (4) proposals. In his opinion they met 
the specs. He does have a question regarding the proposal from 
Res-Care Health Services, Inc., 862-A s. Green River Rd., 
Evansville IN 47715 and that is whether they would meet the bid 
bond requirements. There is a copy of an existing bid bond in 
Kentucky and he is not certain it meets the requirement of the 
proposal as advertised. The second proposal on which he has a 
question is that of Evansville Rescue Mission, Inc. He finds 
several things lacking. He is not certain whether he has opened 

I 

the correct proposal. As the Board is aware, they each submitted 

1 fifteen (15) copies of their proposal. He has opened two copies 
and does not find some of the necessary requirements included, 
including the Non-Collusion Affidavit as well as the Bid Bond. 
The third proposal was from Children & Family Services, Inc. 
(Vincennes, IN). Non-Collusion Affidavit and Bid Bond, as well 
as pertinent signatures have·been included. The fourth proposal 
was from Southwestern Indiana Mental Health Center -- and he 
believes they have met the requirements, with the exception that 
they submitted a check as their Bid Bond and he has not compared 
that with the percentage requirement. He would assume, however, 
that it meets the requirement. These were the only four 
proposals received. 

Commissioner Borries said that for purposes of clarification with 
regard to the Children & Family Services, Inc., there is an 
agency with that name in Vanderburgh County. 

Mr. John reiterated that this is from Vincennes, IN (Knox 
County). 

Continuing, Attorney John said President Borries may want to 
determine whether someone from the Evansville Rescue Mission is 
here. They may have included the aforementioned missing items in 
one of their other sealed proposal envelopes~ 

The Chair asked whether anyone from Evansville Rescue Mission is I 
present? There was no response. For the record,.he said that in 
order to make sure that we had sufficient copies available for 
the Commission and Council, interested parties provided several 
copies of their proposal. What Attorney John has pointed out is 
that there might have been a problem wherein the wrong copy was 
opened. If Attorney John wants to examine the proposals further 
and look at the specs, with the comments he has noted, he will 
come back to him at another point in the agenda. 

Attorney John indicated he will review the proposals further. 

Commissioner Borries said it is a matter of public record now. 
None of the copies have been opened -- everything has been sealed 
until such time as names of parties who had submitted proposals 
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was announced in this meeting. Attorney John will check to be 
sure correct copies were opened. These proposals are now a 
matter of public record and copies·will be given to the 
commission and County Council for their review. If there is 
public interest, certainly the public should attend the 2:30 p.m. 
meeting in Room 303 on Thursday, April 23rd. The Commissioners 
would ask questions and county Council would ask questions 
concerning funding. It would be his ho~e then that if questions 
are answered satisfactorily, then a dec1sion could be reached at 
that meeting concerning awarding the contract. If County Council 
has questions re funding, they might be able to reach a decision 
concerning funding at that time. 

RE: REZONING PETITIONS 

President Berries said several Third Readings have either been 
continued or withdrawn, which should shorten tonight's agenda 
considerably. 

VC-4-87/Petitioner, William A. Hamilton: Location of subject 
property is 14901 u.·s. Highway 41 North. Petitioner is 
requesting change from Agricultural·to M-1. Land is currently 
used for farming and proposed use is equipment sales. The 
rezoning concerns some 2-1/2 acrese 

The Chair asked if anyone is present to speak concerning this 
petition? 

Mr. Carl Brooks was recognized by the Chair and approached the 
podium. He said Mr. Hamilton is out of town tonight and he is 
here to represent Mr. Hamilton, who has briefed him on his plans. 
He will be glad to answer any questions the Commissioners might 
have. He brought the required plans with him tonight for 
entrance and exit as set forth during the APC meeting. 

Commissioner Borries asked if he is talking about what the State 
Highway says is some concerns expressed to them? Is that 
correct? 

Mr. Brooks said that is correct. 

Commissioner Borries queried Mr. Brooks re the concerns. 

Mr. Brooks said 
accordance with 
wide curb cut. 
Commissioners. 

the 12-1/2 ft. wide present driveway is not in 
their highway curb cuts. They require 30 ft. 
He then proceeded to show the plans to the 

Commissioner Cox said that on the development plan it says 
proposed use of property is for "Equipment Sales". Is this going 
to be for display of equipment only or will there will be a 
building put up as an office building? Will there actually be 
selling in that area or is this simply a display and the 
retailing of this merchandise will be handled at another 
location? 

Mr. Brooks said that as he understands it there will be no 
building, trailer or mobile home. The sales would take place at 
the property, probably in his home which is just up the drive. 
He believes he will end pp with a small office in his home. 

Mrs. Cox asked if Mr. Hamilton plans to apply for a Home 
Occupation Permit? 

Mr. Brooks said he was afraid he was going to run into this 
problem. He cannot guarantee that he is going to transact the 
business in his home. 

Commissioner Berries asked what kind of equipment will Mr. 
Hamilton sell, if he has no office or building structure from 
which to sell the equipment? Will this be new or used 
equipment? What kind of shelter or structure would there be? 
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Mr. Brooks said there will be no structure. He will be selling 
used farm equipment and possibly some industrial 
equipment ••• bulldozers or tractors, that sort of thing. 

Commissioner Borries said, "I have a concern with that, because 
we've often referred to this as kind of a corridor for people 
coming into our city and our county. We're building a new I 
airport just a few miles south of where· this is. What kind of 
maintenance would be given to this equipment? What size 
equipment are we talking about? 

Mr. Brooks replied that as he indicated previously, the majority 
would be farm equipment which would be repurchased by Mr. 
HamiJ,.ton or some associates of his. 

Commissioner Borries asked where Mr. Hamilton would refurbish 
this equipment? 

Mr. Brooks said that as he understands it, another gentleman is o 

involved in this who does the painting and any engine work that 
needs to be done prior to putting the equipment up for sale. 
Right now he is doing this out of his residence and he has 
expressed an interest in being able to display the equipment from 
that location. He understands the Commission's concern -­
dragging stuff up there that doesn't run and leave it lay out 
there on the highway. But that is not his intention at all. 

Commissioner Berries said, "I am sure it is not1 yet, I would 
want to know what kind of equipment we are talking about. A lot 
of farm equipment is very large. It might extend past where the 
gravel area would be. I'm sure he would not want to have this 
turn into weeds and that sort of thing -- but those are always I 
concernsc Again, what kind of equipment -- do you have any 
idea?" 

Mr. Brooks responded, "Insofar as farm equipment, from what I 
understand it is mostly going to be tractors -- it wouldn't be 
anything extremely large like harvesters or anything of that 
nature that would over fill the area. He would probably have it 
set up to have six to ten pieces of equipment there at a time. 
Until he reduced his inventory, he wouldn't be bringing in mo.ce 
and more equipment." 

Commissioner Cox said she feels very similar to Mr. Borries in 
that Highway 41 is one of the corridors leading into our city and 
we do have some nice looking developed areas out there that are 
of a manufacturing or industrial nature. There is a lot of green 
space. She noted the site plan had a gravel parking area. Is he 
just go'ing to set the machines down on the ·soil that is out there 
now? Will they be sitting in dirt or mud when it rains? This is 
a big concern when you ask to rezone 2-1/2 acres. That isn't a 
whole lot, but her concern is that we don't even know what is 
going in here. 

Mr. Brooks said that basically the area from the drive and the 
fenced in area that contains the equipment is going to be i53 

1 gravel, with which he is familiar. Once that type of gravel is 
laid down and has been packed, it is about as close to concrete 
as you can get without actually pouring concrete. The equipment 
is not going to sit on the bare ground -- and there would be a 
new 6 ft. fence around it and four dusk to dawn lights. As he 
explained to Mr. Berries, in trying to make the sales, Mr. 
Hamilton's intention is to make the equipment look worthwhile. 
He doesn't want to destroy the looks of the highway there anymore 
than the other people who have rezoned and built along the 
highway. The property has been in his family for appro~imately 
40 years. 

President Borries thanked Mr. Brooks for his comments. He then 
asked if there are other persons who wish to spe~k or remonstrate 
in regard to their concerns relating to this proposal? There was 
no response. The Chair then entertained a motion. 



I 

I 

I 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
April 20 1987· 

Page 7 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-4-87 be approved 
on Third Reading, with a second from Commissioner Cox. 

The Chair then asked for a roll call vote: Commissioner Cox, no; 
Commissioner Willner, no; Commissioner Borries, no. President 
Borries said the motion has been denied. 

RE: REQUEST FOR VACATION OF PORTION OF ST. JOE AVENUE 

The Chair recognized Attorney Les Shively, who was representing 
the petitioners (Paul and Gloria Nalley) who were also in the 
audience. The Nalleys are·petitioning to vacate a portion of St. 
Joe Avenue.· 

Attorney Shively said that the last time we were all together on 
this particular matter, Commissioner Willner had some very good 
questions regarding the location of this particular area -­
whether it involved property that the county had purchased at the 
time St. Joe Avenue was expanded. He then referred the ~ 
Commissioners to the location map included in the handout he had 
given them which shows St. Joe Avenue running all the way from 
Commercial Court well beyond Glenview Drive for some distance. 
He believes these planometric·maps show about a three {3) mile 
area. The next page is the letter from SIGECO. There are no gas 
facilities. There are electric facilities·and we·can't affect 
those. Any vacation is subject to existing utilities. 

The next page shows the area to be vacated. 

Mr. Shively then showed photographs of the subject property. He 
said the bottom photo on the layout will show that there are four 
travel lanes currently, plus two turn blisters in this particular 
area. According to the County Highway Engineer, there are no 
plans for any future expansion. He also has the abstract of 
title with him, which the Commissioners or the County Attorney 
can examine. It shows that when the Nalleys' property was 
platted as subdivision where Glenview·Drive is. The future plans 
for St. Joe Avenue are already in place and they respected those 
plans. They platted all the way back. That setback was already 
existing-when that was platted, so the County did not have to buy 
right-of-way. So this is not right-of-way that the County 
purchased for St. Joe Avenue •. When it was originally platted, 
they respected the setback for the future expansion of St. Joe 
Avenue, which has been completed. There are approximately six 
(6) lanes in that area, including turn lanes, so it does not have 
an effect on the County's future plans and it does not result in 
the County giving back any property that they previously 
purchased. He hopes t~is answers the Board's questions in this 
regard -- but he will be glad to answer any additional questions. 

Commissioner cox asked if Mr. Shively has a letter from.the Water 
& Sewer Department with regard to utilities at this location? 

Attorney Shively said that if there are sewer or water easements 
there, the vacation is subject to those easements; this vacation 
cannot affect those easements. The Nalleys will not be building 
on that particular area, they simply want to increase their lot 
size. 

Commissioner Borries said he is confused as to who owns the 
property at this time. Does it belong to Vanderburgh County? 

Attorney Shively said that really the property belongs to the 
owner on Lot tl subject to the right-of-way setback. They can't 
do anything with it. It is land that was dedicated or set back 
because of the proposed st. Joe Extension. That land was platted 
many years ago. They can't use it for anything, although they 
will pay taxes on it. They own it in a sense, subject to the now 
existing perpetual easement in favor of the county. 
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Commissioner Cox asked if Mr. Shively has the tax code number and 
everything on that and does it actually show the Nalleys as 
owners? It was her understanding that the County needed a 45 ft. 
right-of-way and this subdivision was plotted in 90 ft. lots. In 
order to get the 45 ft. right-of-way, Vanderburgh County had to 
buy the entire 90 ft. lot, which means that the Nalleys don't own 

1 it at this time -- that Vanderburgh County would own it -- if 
that information is correct. 

Attorney Shively said the tax code number is 311-3-131-l (German 
Township)~ 

Continuing, Mr. Shively said that anyone who lives in the City on 
Walnut Street owns to the center of Walnut Street subject to the 
City's right-of-way. That is exactly what this is. No taxes arc 
paid on it, but you own to the center of the road or the 
right-of-way until such time as the City vacates its easement 
rights. The only thing that would happen as the result of this 
vacation is that any existing utility easements (electric, water, 
sewer, etc.) would remain in place. The only thing that would 
result is that they would now have an·uninterrupted fee interest 
in that property subject to those utility easements, and it will 
be taxed accordingly. 

Mrs. Cunningham of the APC said, "Right now they have the green 
without paying taxes." 

Commissioner Borries said, "Well, they are not going to be able 
to build on it. I guess my question would be, 'Why do they want 
to do this then'?" 

Attorney Shively said the Nalleys simply would like to have more I 
area of property. They are both here this evening and they can 
explain what they want to do with it -- and that is to increase 
the size of their lot. 

Mrs. Cunningham said, "But you cannot build unless you get a 
variance." 

Attorney Shively said "We understand that." 

Commissioner Willner asked, "What assurance do we have that they 
won't get a variance?" · 

Mrs. Cunningham said, "You don't have any assurance that they 
won't get a variance."· 

Commissioner Willner said, "Certainly not." 

Attorney Shively said, "Commissioner Willner, I don't understand 
what the objection is, if the County is in a situation where the 
property is going to go back on the rolls and produce some tax 
dollars and there are no plans to widen St. Joe Avenue." 

Commissioner Cox said, "I am confused on this. I was under the 
impression that -- you showed me Lot tl -- they own all of that. 
That is what they bought. That is outside this right-of-way that I 
we are talking about, so they never did buy this 45 ft. that we 
are talking about. Vanderburgh county bought the 45 ft." 

Attorney Shively said, "With all due respect, Mrs. Cox, I think 
what happened was that when the developer came in there and owned 
this large tract of land, he was told to reserve "x" amount of 
land for the future expansion of st. Joe Avenue. ·That was 
"dedicated" right-of-way, not "paid for" right-of-way. The 
county never paid for it, they·dedicated it to the county at the 
time the property was platted. This is something that frequently 
happens." 

Commissioner Cox said, "I didn't understand it that way, Mr. 
Shively. Their lot never included this, so ultimately ~t is not 
an easement that they have g1ven us off their property. 
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Attorney Shively pointed to the map and said, "What happened was 
that whoever owned this entire tract of land from designated 
points to designated point, they came before the Planning 
Commission and the Planning Commission said, 'Fine, we'll approve 
your plat, but we want you to leave this amount of footage 
because St. Joe Avenue may expand some day•. The County never 
paid for· that." 

Ms. Behme said it was dedicated to the county by way of recorded 
plat. 

Commissioner Borries said, "I have a concern here (nothing 
against the Nalleys because·! don't now them and can't say} that 
they are going to be gaining possession of land that they do not 
own and never paid for." 

Attorney Shively said, "That is what happens in every vacation~ 
Mr. Berries. There would be no reason for them to come before 
the Commissioners if they already owned the land. If you are 
unsure as to whether the property was dedicated or the county 
paid for it, I will work with Attorney John or whoever you want 
me to work with to verify that fact once and for all. I am 
satisfied with what I read in the abstract that that is what 
occurred. But I would be happy to provide that to you if you 
want to con·tinue this to your next meeting or another public 
hearing so we can clarify that for you. I certainly understand 
your concern." 

Commissioner Berries said, "My concern is also that I don't think 
we are denying the Nalleys any access to something that at this 
point they do not use -- so I cannot understand why there would 
be any reason to do this. I can't work through that particular 
portion. It is true that the County would have no plans at this 
time, but all things change. This .Board will not be here forever 
and so you can't really make a dete~mination for the future with 
that kind of situation. That is why I am trying to work through 
this idea, to understand and try to be respectful of the Nalleys' 
wishes, but try to .understand the reasoning behind what we are 
doing here." 

Commissioner Cox said, "It looks like this is now excess land. 
that the county has, whether it was given to us or we bought it. 
So how do we deal with excess land? Can we just give it away? 
Or do we have to auction it off? What is the proper legal 
procedure re vacations? 

Attorney John said it is very common for any governmental entity 
when they· own land to vacate if they do not have use for it and 
it is going to go back to the record owner. 

Commissioner Cox said, "The record owner does not own it in the 
beginning. It is not part of their lot. That is what I asked." 

Attorney John said "Ownership passes as the land is conveyed. 
Most deeds will say· 'subject to any easements, right-of-ways , 
etc., and the purchaser is taking subject to that. Once that 
easement or right-of-way is vacated, it would go to the then 
owner of that property. He believes the reason the law reads 
that way is because many times it is a piece of land of a size 
that it wouldn't be conceivable to auction off, because the only 
possible bidder would be person who owns the fee to the remainder 
of the land." 

Attorney Shively said Mr. Nalley said he and his wife would like 
to own this because they maintain it. They use it as part of 
their lawn and maintain it. If the County is concerned that they 
have within the past 10 to 15 years paid cash for that land, that 
would be a legitimate concern. He is satisfied by reading the 
chain of titl.e that that is not what occurred. He would be happy 
to search other public documents, again along with the County 
Attorney, to s~tisfy the aoard once and for all. But he.thinks 
everyone beneflts from th1s vacat1on -- tne county oenet1ts and 
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makes the property produce some taxes; the Nalleys acquire 
ownership in property they do not have. But any way the county 
wants to go -- he will be more than glad to accommodate them in 
any way and answer any additional questions. 

The Chair entertained further questions. There were none. The 
Chair then asked if there were other persons who wished to speak 
concerning the matter of the vacation of a portion of St. Joe I 
Avenue? 

Mr. John Ashworth of 2424 Glenview Drive was recognized and 
approached the podium. He·stated that his first concern is that 
will make a commercial corner there. Just north they have the 
same proposition. Mr. Ruff that owns ·the chain of stores owns a 
piece of rental property that is getting in pretty bad condition 
and he will have the same option there. More than 20 ft. off the 
back of his own lot is an easement. It has been there 20 years 
and that is better than having to come back up here in six months 
and saying he doesn't. want that commercial. The guy who' started 
the subdivision is the guy who donated the land -- it is not part 
of anybody's property. If they want to do that, they can take 
that 20 ft. easement on back to his lot if that is what they want 
to do. But that is going to be opening that up for a commercial 
corner -- and that will make a nice commercial corner -- with 
that 82 ft. lot plus the 45 ft. Two of the people next door are 
selling their home and are unconcerned about it; that is why they 
are not here. The man who owns Lots i3 (Mr. Deere) is in a 
nursing home. The lady across the street from him has not been 
out of the house for five (5) years, because she is incapacitated 
and can't get out. However, his next door neighbor, Mr. Russell, 
is here, also. Neither of them want a commercial corner on that 
lot. 

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Ashworth. Commissioner I 
Berries asked, " Subject to this vacation, you think the Nalleys 
at some point might want to rezone the portion?" 

Mr. Ashworth responded, "That's entirely possible. According to 
his information Lots il2·is an 82 ft. lot only." 

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Ashworth if he is on a sanitary sewer? 
Does it come down the front along st. Joe Avenue? 

He responded that he is. It comes off St. Joe. The sewer runs 
right in back of his property. He lives on the south side of 
Glenview Drive and the storm sewer runs in back of him. It 
empties into the creek back there. The storm sewer runs parallel 
to the sanitary sewer and then runs right back to the creek, 
which is about two blocks down the street {back of Mr. Ruff's 
property). · 

The Chair entertained further questions of Mr. Ashworth •• There 
were none. 

The Chair then asked if anyone else wishes to speak? 

Mr. Jim Myers was recognized by the Chair and approached the 
podium. He said he has property adjoining - and believes he is I 
the only one who has property adjoining. First, with regard to 
the right-of-way, he doesn't believe this is legally 
right-of-way. He pointed to map to designated area. He said Bob 
Myers, who was the developer, ha_d a lot there and no one outside 
of Bob Myers has owned that property to his knowledge. He 
thought it should be disposed of as an asset (like a truck would 
be at the county garage, or office equipment or whatever). Since 
we're not going to give it back to the previous owner, he thought 
it should be placed for auction, because he might be willing to 
bid on it. 

Commissioner Berries asked, "You are saying you think it belongs 
to the original developer?" 
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Mr. Myers said today the land belongs to the county and has for 
quite a few years. He has some drainage problems. There is both 
a sanitary and a storm sewer, but as Mr. Ashworth said, every lot 
in the subdivision has a fence on an easement. He has taken his 
own fence down and put it back up a couple of times when.he 
tapped into the sanitary sewers. He now has to get into the 
storm sewer to correct some draina9e problems on his property and 
he is concerned about the 20 ft. easement in there. The last 
four times that the Telephone Company and SIGECO have·gone in and 
serviced this area, they came to him to ask whether they could 
drive on his property and he let them. He would let them again 
except that he has some future plans re some other work he wants 
to to -- shrubbery, greenery, etc. The thing is that for 20 
years there has been a 20 ft. easement there. The easements are 
the thing that concerns him because he has his home and a garage 
there and he has to get in there. 

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Myers. There were none 
and the Chair again called upon Attorney Shively. 

Attorney Shively said that before this particular petition was 
filed, he· met with the County Highway Engineer to verify the 
legal description and to verify what the county's intended use 
would be for the pro development of st. Joe Avenue. He was 
informed that there was no future development and that is why 
they proceeded with this particular petition. The aspect of 
future zoning down the road he does not believe· is at all 
relevant. Once again, that is zoning which the Board of 
Commissioners controls and he doesn't think that is relevant nor 
does he think it would be consistent with a residential 
subdivision, except for this particular lot. Maybe he wasn't 
clear on this point but.as indicated before, the storm sewer 
easement, water, ~ewer, SIGECO -- any of those easements remain -
and they cannot do anything to interfere with the rights of those 
utilities to utilize their easements, not only for expansion of 
services, but for maintenance as well. The Nalleys have 
maintained this area for some time since·they lived there. They 
simply want to add to their lot size subject to the utilities 
that do exist in this particular area. The net result will be 
that this particular tract of land which· the county no longer 
needs will go back on the ta~ rolls and will produce tax dollars 
-- and from what he can read in the paper, every little avenue to 
find additional tax dollars seems to be something local 
government is interested in. An additional point (and he thinks 
Mr. Myers alluded to it) -- this is land that was not purchased 
by the county; it was land that was dedicated. This is something 
that a lot of times we ask people to do when they come before the 
Commissioners on a subdivision when they are going to expand an 
existing road or what have you. We have them reserve certain 
areas for roads on their plat. This is the same thing that 
happened in this particular case·way back when it was platted. 
If the Commissioners still have questions, he would like to know 
specifically what those questions are, especially in terms of 
whether the county actually paid something for this property and 
get those questions answered for the Commissioners. The matter 
of utilities can be addressed (although this will have no effect 
on said utilities). But he'd rather have those questions 
answered rather than a vote be taken and the Commissioners not 
having their questions answered. In that respect, they will be 
more than happy to accommodate the Board. 

Commissioner Berries asked for the feeling of the Commissioners. 

Commissioner Willner said he probably thinks the county did not 
pay for this land and that it was dedicated. He has no problem 
with that. He has no problem with the Nalleys continuing to use 
the land with no charge to them for taxes. But if we ever want 
to install a turn lane or accelleration lane for some reason, we 
have enough property to do so. He is just not happy with the 
idea of giving it away. 
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The Chair asked whether the Commissioners want to delay the 
matter or take·a vote? 

Commissioner Cox said she is prepared to vote. 

Commissioner Willner indicated he was prepared to vote and moved 
that the vacation be approved, with a second from Commissioner I 
Cox. . 

The Chair asked for a roll call vote: Commissioner Cox, no; 
Commissioner Willner, no; Commissioner Berries, no. The Chair 
declared the request denied. 

RE: REQUEST FOR VACATION OF PORTION OF SHORT SELZER RD. 

Attorney Shively said the first page of handout to the 
Commissioners is an excerpt from the Vanderburgh County 
planometric maps and the reason he has included this is because 
these are developed from aerial photos of existing roads and • 
existing structures. If the Commissioners look at the plat, they 
can see that they proposed too take Short Selzer Rd. and run all 
the way around designated gooseneck are~. · But it ended at 
another designated point. In fact, what occurred was that a 
designated area of Short Selzer Rd. was extended and becomes a 
private driveway to· designated residence. What has actually 
happened is that Short Selzer Rd. was never developed according 
to the plans shown on the plat. What actually occurred was that 
it stopped short and then one of the previous or existing 
property owners extended it to designated point and made a 
private driveway from the end on back. He continued to show 
photos to the Board. He said that he understands it, a 
designated area was never developed. At another designated I 
point, someone paved it and made it a private driveway to their 
house -- because it runs right into their house. What they are 
asking to vacate is (designated area), which is the only portion 
that their respective properties touch. As can be seen from the 
photographs, Short Selzer Rd •. is not only short, it is narrow. 
There is not enough· right-of-way to ever complete it the way it 
should be completed to county specs. And if it is not up to 
county specs he doesn't believe the county could maintain it. 
The other problem is the terrain. The terrain is very, very 
hilly. No properties are landlocked -- all the properties do 
have their own existing access. He will be glad to answer any 
questions the Commissioners might have. 

The Chair asked if there are persons present who wish to speak 
regarding this matter? 

Mr. Albert Becker was recognized by the Chair. He said Lot iS 
has now been divided and it joins the back of the property in 
question (Lot il2). His thinking is that if they vacate (and he 
is not strictly against the vacation) -- but if they vacate that 
portion of the property from Selzer Rd. to the back of his 
property what is going to happen to prevent at some future date 
their deciding to split that property in half? He said they have 
to keep the right-of-way coming down through the property on Lot 
iS so they can get access to the back end of the lot that they I 
have vacated the road to •. This is his concern. 

Commissioner Cox requested that Mr. Becker approach the 
Commissioners' table. She said they are only requesting vacation 
from designated point on -- so Lot iS would still have access. 
After lengthy discussion and comments concerning the vacation, it 
appeared that all questions were resolved and the Chair 
entertained a motion. 

Commissioner Willner said he doesn't see any problem. They 
dedicated that to the county when they came and got this 
subdivision -- we didn't buy it -- and it belongs to the county. 
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The Chair entertained further questions from the Commissioners. 
There were none and a motion was entertained. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the request be 
approved, with a second from Commissioner Cox. The Chair asked 
for a roll call vote: Commissioner Cox yes; Commissioner 
Willner, yes; Commissioner Borries, yes. The Chair declared the 
motion approved. 

RE: REQUEST FOR DRIVEWAY PERMIT - HERMUS LEWIS 

President Borries said that Item #8 has been continued to May 
11th. 

RE: PROPOSALS RE HILLCREST-WASHINGTON CHILDREN 1 S HOME 

Attorney John returned to the meeting and said that the 
Commissioners requested that he check further on the bids. He 
said he should inform the Commissioners that the proposal, as 
submitted by the Evansville Rescue Mission, was based upon the 
Request for Bids passed out at a certain meeting (~bout four 
weeks ago). If the Commissioners will recall, there was an 
amendment made. At that time it was an informal request and had 
not been published. The informal request passed out did not call 
for the bid bond nor the non-collusion affidavit and that is what 
they based their proposal on, rather than the published request. 
Because of that misunderstanding, he believes this is why both 
items were not included in their proposal. He would imagine 
there would be a more detailed report at the next Commissioners 
meeting after a review of the proposals has been made. It is his 
understanding that the Commissioners will take these proposals 
under advisement until next week. · 

Commissioner Borries said there is a meeting scheduled for 
Thursday -- a joint meeting with Council. 

Commissioner Cox said she wonders why they did not get the proper 
proposal? 

Attorney John asked if the Board recalls the meeting where the 
initial request was passed out? 

Mr. Lindenschmidt said they apparently picked up one of these 
requests. 

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, apparently -- I think we need to find out __ n 

Attorney John said he he was referred to Roger Mason, who 
apparently drafted their proposal. He said he had read and 
re-read the Request for Bids as handed out to them at a specific 
meeting and he does know this version is the one passed out 
rather than the advertised version which calls for all the 
statutory requirements regarding the bidding. According to his 
statements over the telephone, he was not aware of the additional 
requirements -- the necessary bond and non-collusion affidavit. 
He merely had the handout given to him at the Commissioners 
Meeting. 

Commissioner Cox asked if that is all that is missing? 

Mr. John said they have a proposal and they quoted proposed 
char9es and the proposal has been signed -- but the bid bond and 
non-collusion affidavit are not there. This is all subject to 
the Commissioners' review and they can take it from there. 

Commissioner Berries said, personally speaking, it would not be 
his intent -- he would not want -- to penalize any group that had 
spent time sincerely trying to meet the requirements that we had 
asked for, through any mistake that might have been made. These 
things can get very complicated. we are dealing with a county 
facility and children and lots of players out here and decision 
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makers and it can get confusing. He would think that this 
proposal would be something that the County Council is going to 
consider if it is accepted tonight. He supposes we could bring 
this matter to the attention of the council at the April 23rd 
meeting. He would not want to penalize anybody at this point --
what is the feeling of the other Commissioners? Could we inform 
this group by tomorrow to determine whether they could meet these 
requirements by April 23rd? To submit what they have not I 
submitted? Can we do that? 

Attorney John asked if Commissioner Borries is asking that they 
conform to the requirements after the proposals have been opened? 

Commissioner Borries said that is correct. 

Attorney John said he is not going to say at this time that that 
would be correct. But any bids are subject to rejection or 
approval -- so they can all be rejected and go from there. If we 
find one that is more sufficient, then the Board has the 
authority to approve it if it has met the requirements. 

Commissioner Borries said that, again, for the record he would 
want to state· that as advertised the bids did reflect what the 
County had asked for in its final form and the advertisement was 
published twice (April 3rd and April lOth) in the Evansville 
newspapers. 

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL 

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Bethel submitted copies of 
the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for 
period April 13th thru April 17, 1987 •• e•••report received and 

1 filed. Attached to the Work Report was the following Work 
Schedule: 

Gradall: 

Patch Crew: 

Graded & 
Rocked: 

Trash Crew: 

Rip-Rap: 

Paved: 

Baseline and Petersburg Rd. 

Denzer Rd. and Nisbet Station Rd. 

Nuebling, Hilltop, Zimmerman, Motz Rd., Motz Lane, 
Day Rd., Gable Rd. and Staub Lane 

Lynn Rd., Pollack Ave., Kneer and Baseline 

Felstead Rd. 

Mesker Park Hill by Cemetery - 1 coat 

Run Barricades - High Water 

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same 
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew: 

Replaced culvert on Hornby and rip-rapped Fisher Rd. 
Repaired drain at 430 Wind Circle, North 
Replaced guard rail on Bender Rd. on Bridge tl7 
Unstopped pipe on Koring Rd. 
Repaired guard rail on Felstead Rd. 
Repaired guard rail on Green River Rd. 

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were 
the Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage and the 
Bridge Crew •••••• reports received and filed. · 

RE: PROPOSALS RE HILLCREST-WASHINGTON CHILDREN'S HOME 

President Borries said that, for the record, the Board is still 
discussing the advertisement for proposals on 
Hillcrest-Washington Children's Home. 

I 
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Mr. Lindenschmidt said the request was advertised twice and the 
secretary had been told to go to Purchasing to advertise what was 
approved. 

Commissioner Willner said that is correct -- to advertise what 
the Commissioners approved. 

Commissioners Borries and Cox stated that the verbiage added at 
the beginning of the advertisement is a requirement and is 
included on all bid advertisements released. Commissioner 
Borries asked, "Don't we use this on all requests for bids or 
proposals that are advertised in the local media? Commissioner 
Cox pointed out that in Item #4 it does say that· •.••• "bids must 
specifically address each of the items provided in the request 
for bids. Failure to address each item may result in the 
rejection of the bid." 

Commissioner Willner asked, "But we didn't approve that did we?" 

Commissioner Cox said, ·"This is the general requirements. The 
Commissioners don't approve the general instructions, I don't 
think." 

Commissioner Borries said, "I think we do as part of the 
Purchasing Department procedure, that is used with every 
advertisement that appears in the media that we would do, be it 
pertaining to roads or, at this point, management of a county 
facility.• 

Attorney John asked, "But it was not passed out at the meeting 
where this request for proposal was passed out? This was the 
legal ad which meets the statutory requirements and the bid form 
to .be used etc. The first part mainly addressed what the 
Commissioners wanted them to bid on, and not necessarily the 
requirements of the bidding." 

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - ANDY EASLEY 

Claim/HSM&M re "B" Street Underpass: Mr. Easley said he had 
presented copies of the following letter from Hayes, Seay, 
Mattern & Mattern to the Commissioners: 

April 14 1987 

Mr. R. Andrew Easley, Jr. P.E. 
County Highway Engineer 
vanderburgh County Highway Department 
Engineering Division 
325 Administration Building 
Civic Center Complex 
Evansville IN 47708 

Re: Design of "B" Street Underpass of 

Dear Andy, 

the CSX Railroad/County of Vanderburgh, IN 
A&E Commission No. 2854 

Enclosed is our billing from 28 February 1987 thru 31 March 
1987 for the above referenced project. At this time we estimate 
to have completed 20 percent of the project. 

In summary of the work completed, Warrick Engineering, Inc. 
has completed 90 percent of their field work and 90 percent of 
their research and drafting. In addition, our office has 
developed a typical section sheet preliminary vertical alignment 
for tracks and roadway, and a temporary detour for Broadway 
Avenue. 

If there are any questions or comments, please do not 
hesitate to contact us. 
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Very truly yours, 

HAYES, SEAY, MATTERN & MATTERN 

J. Scott Hodge 
Project Manager 

Mr. Easley said the claim is in the amount of $13,903.61~ He has I 
checked it and recommends that it be paid. As a matter of the 
status of what they are doing,, they have told him that they are 
running about a week late and they have promised him that they 
will mail eight (8) sets of the preliminary plans no later than 
April 24th (Friday of this week) via UPS. If the Commissioners 
wish to set a public hearing or meeting· on that, they said we 
should be able to count on having those by no later-than a week 
from today. One of the problems is a fiber optic cable that is 
subject to very strict handling.. If the Commissioners are 
familiar with the fibre optics, you do not cut it and splice it 
-- and it is posing some construction problems. It has -to be 
excavated and tenderly supported while they build the underpass~ 
He said he believes they are telling the truth, because he 
learned about that when we met with the local Seaboard staff. 
They told him about the fibre optic cable that· had recently been 
buried along the railroad track. (It's a telephone cable -- a 
communications facility. It's like one of these commercials -
Sprint or something like that. 

Commissioner Cox said-the letter from HSM&M says that they are 20 
percent completed. They are going to be able in ten {10) days to 
come up with the other 80 percent? 

Mr. Easley said the preliminary is considered to be about 20 
percent of the design work. He talked with them today. 

Commissioner Cox asked if they will be prepared to be here for 
the public meeting? 

Mr. Easley said th~t is one of the things he wants to ask the 
Board. would they like for HSM&M to send a representative? He 
suggested that we look at the plans together -- and if the 
Commissioners have any questions we could have HSM&M give us the 
answer to -- he doesn't know whether they budgeted this in their 
project -- to come to the public hearing -- he doesn't recall. 
It may be some travel that they have not anticipated. we could 
ask them to come. He thinks the plans may be self-explanatory. 
He has been discussing this with them and he believes they told 
him that the last three houses on the south side of "B" Street 
would probably have some steps for access and a retaining wall 
and such things as that.. Nonetheless, we should have the plans a 
week from today. Is the Board going to advertise the public 
hearing? 

Commissioner Borries said he would like to advertise for that if 
the Commission approves doing so. Whatever fees we would have to 
work out -- but, certainly, he would hope that a firm- this size 
would be able to help us via providing skilled personnel here at 
there expense and be able to answer questions the public may have 
on this. We'd have to select a public place in that area, I 
guess. 

Commissioner Cox said there is the fire station -- that's a 
public building. Reitz High School is a public building no, 
it is School Corporation building. 

Commissioner Borries said he would think that Reitz High School 
might be •••••• 

Mrs. Cox said she feels sure the Howell Booster Club would offer 
that shelter house to the county at no charge for this meeting. 

Commissioner Borries asked how the Commissioners feel about this? 

I 



I 

I 

I 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
April 20 1987· · 

Page 17 

Mrs. Cox said the city turned the shelter over to the Howell 
Booster Club; they take care of the rent, maintenance, etc. 

Commissioner Berries said if it is the feeling of the Commission 
to have it at the Bowell Booster Club Shelter Bouse --· do we need 
to wait until April 24th to see if Andy has the preliminary 
design in hand? Mr. Easley said he believes the Board can go 
ahead and set the meeting date. Be has said theywill be mailed 
no later than April 24th. 

President Berries asked Attorney John how many times we have to 
advertise to hold a public hearing on the "B" Street Underpass? 

Attorney John said he thinks it is two times, but he can check. 

Commissioner Berries said that is o.k. We usually advertise 
things twice in a consistent ~ay. 

Mr. Easley said he could help the secretary draft a notice. 

Commissioner Berries said if we advertised them Friday, May 1st 
and Friday, May 8th, we could hold it the following week. Be 
would think we could hold it on Wednesday May 13th or Thursday 
May 14th. Since that would not be a weekend, perhaps that would 
not hurt attendance or interfere with plans that have been made. 
We'd have to check the availability of that shelter house. 

Commissioner Cox asked, "Why do we have to wait to advertise it? 

Commissioner Berries asked, "Andy, you're saying you'd have 
it .... n 

Mr. Easley said, "I expect to have it in the building a week from 
today." 

Commissioner Berries said, "If we approved it today, they usually 
advertise them on Thursday or Friday. So if we advertised it 
this weekend ••••• we could do it the following week, if that is 
agreeable -- if you want to do it May 6th or 7th." 

Mrs. Cox said, "I'd like to hold it as soon as we can." 

Attorney John said, "Many of those advertising requirements call 
for two consecutive advertisements, the final action cannot be 
prior to ten (10) days after the last of the two -- so be careful 
there. And I'm not sure that fits in -- but in many of them it 
is like that." 

Commissioner Berries said, "Then we would· be into the following 
week." 

Attorney John asked why we want to hold a public meeting? 

Commissioner cox said, "Because we said we were going to do this 
--that's one reason." · 

Commissioner Willner said "Well, I think we ought to inform them, 
but ••• " 

Mrs. Cox asked, "Well, how are you going to inform them except by 
way of a public meeting?" 

Mr. Easley said, "You could through the news media -- pick an 
afternoon meeting -- and say that you were going to discuss it at 
4:00 p.m. and give it wide publicity." 

Mrs. Cox said, "Then let's do it just as soon as we can~" 

Mr. Easley said, "I trust these people; I think the plans will 
be here a week from today, because I told them we wanted to have 
this meeting and we have to count on what they are telling us." 
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Mrs. Cox asked, •so we could have it the 27th (we have a Drainage 
Meeting)? Or, how·about May 4th?• 

Commissioner Borries asked, "How about May 4th? That's usually 
a short meeting. If it is agreeable, we'll just ask the public 
to attend •••• • 

Mr. Easley said, "We could try a Press Release -- and let I 
everybody know that the plans are here if they want to examine 
them-- and I could have Mr. Gwinn •••• " 

Commissioner Borries said, "You can call and request HSM&M to be 
here for the meeting and we'll hold it early in the agenda at the 
2:30 meeting on May 4th. We'll just include it on the agenda." 

Mr. Easley asked if the Commissioners suppose there will be 
people out there -- they could surely take off from work for an 
hour to come see these plans. They could see them at another 
time, because they will be in our office and I think we're goinge 
to have eight (8) sets. 

Commissioner Borries said "If you'll just give us the 
acknowledgment early next week on April 27th that you have 
received those plans, we'll invite the public to come down and 
see them at any time. They should contact your office.• 

Claim/HSM&M: Mr. Easley asked if the Commissioners have approved 
the claim to HSM&M in the amount of $13,903.61? Motion to 
approve claim was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second 
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

Claim/Bernardin, Lochmueller & Assoc.: Mr. Easley presented I 
claim in the amount of $2,558.25 for design work on Boonville-New 
Harmony Road Extension Project for period February 1 thru March 
31, 1987. The claim is in accordance with· the agreement and it 
is his recommendation that the claim be paid. Motion to approve 
claim was made by Commissioner Willner with a second from 
Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

Mr. Easley said he thinks a month ago they told him they were 
about a month away from being able to come up with right-of-way 
drawings so we could appoint some right-of-way purchasing people. 

Mrs. Cox asked, "We've done that, haven't we?" 

Mr. Easley said, "You may have.• 

Mr. Easley asked, •I told you, didn't I, that I met with the 
Fehds concerning their written objections, wherein they had asked 
for a public hearing?" 

Mrs. Cox responded, •yes.• 

Claim/Bernardin, Lochmueller & Assoc.: Mr. Easley presented 
claim in the amount of $4,434.35 for design work on Lynch Road 
Extension from Oak Hill Rd. to Burkhardt Rd. It is his 
recommendation that the claim be paid. Motion to approve claim I 
was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner 
Cox. So ordered. 

RE: STREET PLANS FOR MCCUTCHAN ESTATES I AND GREENBRIAR 
ESTATES III· 

Mr. Easley said he has street plans for McCutchan Estates I and 
Greenbriar Estates III, and he has just finished checking the 
plans (on which revisions were made). He has tried, at the 
Board's request, to provide them with the plans several days·in 
advance. 

Mrs. Cox asked, 8 Are these street acceptances?" 
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Mr. Easley said "No, no-- these are street design plans.• 

It was subsequently determined that the Commissioners have not 
yet had an opportunity to review the plans and approval will be 
deferred for one (l) week. 

RE: ENGINEERING AGREEMENT - ORCHARD RD. BRIDGE 

It was noted by Mr. Easley that he has two (2) copies of 
engineering agreement between Veach, Nicholson, Griggs Assoc. and 
the county concerning the Orchard Rd.·Bridge Project. The 
agreement is in the amount of $31,117.90. Rose Zigenfus was the 
lead on this and she is out of town, and Cliff Ong asked that he 
bring the agreement today for the Commissioners• approval. Mr. 
Easley said he has looked it over and thinks it follows the State 
guidelines. Although the State is not participating in this, it 
uses the State format •. 

Commissioner Willner asked, "But they are going to participate in 
road construction to the tun& of 80%?" 

Mr. Easley said, "Yes, that is right.• Again, the total fee for 
the design of the·bridge is not to exceed $31,117.90, and that 
includes soil ·consultants in the amount of $6,003.90, which is a 
not to exceed •. • 

Mrs. Cox asked, "Is that included in the $31,000 figure?" 

Mr. Easley responded, "Yes, it is." 

Mrs. Cox said that if we want to get this constructed this year 
the Board had better move on it. Doesn't Mr. Willner agree? 

Commissioner Willner said, "Yes, I'd like to get it done this 
construction season." 

Mr. Easley said he and Bill Veach were discussing that it would 
help the project if we could agree that a design speed on that 
road would be 30 miles per hour. It has some curves. If you 
would increase the ·design speed to 40 miles per hour, the clear 
zone requirements are substantial and the radius of the curves 
get larger and it also has some bad approaches. Thus he thinks 
that when we award this, we should agree with EUTS that we select 
the proper design speed and he doesn't think that· 30 miles per 
hour would be ••••• there could be ice on the bridge and people 
shouldn't be approaching that bridge at a high speed. He asked 
the Commissioners for their opinion." 

Commissioner Willner asked, "Are you saying that when they design 
the bridge they are going to·have to design the roadway on each 
side?" 

Mr. Easley said, "The approaches have to be designed and that is 
part of getting the Federal participation -- some 500 ft. on each 
side. I don't like to get you involved in minute, technical 
details, but this is not exactly a minute technical detail -- it 
really affects the scope of the project." 

Commissioner Cox said, "I really think it needs to be considered, 
because anytime they put down new pavement or a new top on a 
road, they make an Indianapolis 500 out of the road anyway -­
because they think it is so nice and smooth -- and I think it is 
a road that merits precautionary measures in driving, because it 
is narrow and winding -- so that is something to consider. 

The Chair entertained a motion. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the Commissioners 
execute the agreement so we can give notice to proceed, with a 
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

Mr. Eqsley said sin~e Rose Zigenfus is out of town this week, we 
can d1scuss the des1gn speed fiext week. 
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RE: OLD BUS I NESS 

The Chair entertained matters of Old Business for discussion. 

& Tu man Rd. s eed Limit: Commissioner Cox said 
Commissioner B · mentioned at the last meeting that he had 
received a etter from the Longs out on Harmony Way concerning 
the repairs made. She doesn't think we've ever had that new 
speed limit posted -- she didn't see it up when she was out there 
-- and we need to do an ordinance. Before we do that ordinance, 
she has some information to present to the Commissioners sop they 
can do one-ordinance covering a couple of items. She received a 
call from a very concerned gentleman that lives on·Tupman-Rd. 
Tupman Rd. is a small section of road off Upper Mt.·Vernon Rd. 
just west of Red Bank Rd. and behind Tupman Cemetery·. It is a 
highly residential area, and we repaved it last year. A new 
family moved in at the end of the lane up on the hill an they 
have a lot of traffic down that road and there are a lot of 
children out playing now. The Sheriff has been called and said ~ 
that unless it is posted, it is· 40 miles per hour -- and that is 
much too fast to be going down a residential street. Thus, she 
would like to request that this also be included in the ordinance 
and make that a 25 miles per hour speed limit. The other people 
who lived there creake4 down the road-- but the-new-people who 
jut moved in she guesses they are not that familiar with the 
situation and now that it is warm the children are playing 
outside. Really, she doesn't think people should be going 40 
miles per hour in a residential area. So other than just the 
regular county 40 mile per hour speed limit, she thinks the lower 
speed limit should be posted. 

Commissioner Willner asked, nwhat about 30 miles per hour?n 

Mrs. Cox said, nThirty (30) would be better than forty {40) 
but if you post-it 30 they will go 35 anyway. 

Commissioner Willner said, nwe made it 30 mph on Harmony Way." 

Mrs. Cox said, "Twenty-five (25 mph) -- you said it yourself. I 
have it all written down. 

After further brief discussion, it was the consensus of opinion 
that the posted speed limit in both locations should be 30 miles 
per hour and that County Attorney John should draw up an 
ordinance to this effect for the Commissioners' approval. 

The Chair entertained further matters of Old Business for 
discussion. There were none. 

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS 

April 20 - 23 10:00 a.m. Instructional Mtgs. 
for Election Board 
Members 

Mon. April 20 7:00 p.m. n 

Thurs. April 23 2:30 p.m. Joint Meeting Room 301 
re Hillcrest Home 

Sat. April 25 10:00 a.m. Groundbreaking for 
Airport Terminal 

Wed. April 29 2:00 p.m. County Council 
Personnel 

Committee (Room 303) 

Wed. April 29 2:30 p.m. County Council 
Finance Meeting 

Mon. May 4 2:30 p.m. Public Meeting re nan 
Street Underpass 

I 

I 

I 
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Thurs. May 7 5:00 p.m. Assoc. of Indiana 
counties Mtg. at 
Holiday Inn/Vincennes 

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 

Sheriff 1 s Dept. (Appointments) 

Timothy R. Eli Prob. Patrolman $19,247/Yr. Eff: 4/23/87 

Sheriff 1 s Department (Releases) 

Kent w. Walker Prob. Patrolman $19,247/Yr. Eff: 4/22/87 

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts (Appointments) 

Helen Neisz Bond & Fine $6.00/Hr. Eff: 4/13/87 

Clerk of Circuit & Superior courts (Releases) 

Kim Doom Bond & Fine $6.00/Hr. Eff: 4/13/87 

Prosecutor (Appointments) 

Dennis Ae Vowells Dep. Prosecutor $14,500/Hr. Eff: 4/20/87 

Prosecutor (Releases) 

Dennis A. Vowells Dep. Prosecutor $23,000/Yr. Eff: 4/20/87 

Election Office (Appointments) 

Charlotte Shetler Dep. Clerk 
Sylvia T. Loviscek Dep. Clerk 
Doris Cato Dep/ Clerk 

Burdette Park (Appointments) 

Timothy Bell 
Brenda M-itz 
Charles-Coleman 

PTGC 
PTRG 
PTGC 

Burdette Park (Releases) 

Nancy Buckman 
Jeff Craft 

PTGC 
PTGC 

$4.86/Hr. 
$4.85/Hr. 
$4.85/Hr. 

$4.00/Hr. 
$4.00/Hr. 
$4.35/Hr. 

$4.00/Hr. 
$4.00/Hr. 

Armstrong Township Assessor (Appointments) 

Eff: 
Eff: 
Eff: 

Eff: 
Eff: 
Eff: 

4/13/87 
4/13/87 
4/20/87 

4/2/87 
4/18/87 
4/20/87 

Eff: 2/23/87 
Eff: 3/16/87 

Joyce Ann Kron P.T. Clerical $35.00/Day Eff: 4/1/87 

Vanderburgh Superior Court (Appointments) 

Marilynn Hess Riding Bailiff $16,308/Yr. Eff: 4/27/87 

Vanderburgh Superior Court (Releases) 

Tracey L. Statz Riding Bailiff $16,308/Yr. Eff: 4/24/87 

There being no further business to come before the Board, 
President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS 

R. J. Borries 
R. L. Willner 
s. J. Cox 

COUNTY AUDITOR 

Cindy Mayo, 
Chief Deputy 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

curt John 

I 

. I 
I 
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COUNTY HIGHWAY 
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OTHER 

COUNTY ENGINEER 

Andy Esley 

Les Shively Attorney 
Mr. & Mrs. Paul Nalley 
Carl Brooks 
John Ashworth 
Jim Myers 
Albert Becker 
News Media 

Joanne A. Matthews 
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AREA PLAN 

Beverly Behme 

I 

I 

I 
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MINUTES 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

APRIL 27, 1987 

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at 
2:30 p.m. on Monday, April 27, 1986, in the Commissioners Hearing 
Room with President Rick Borries presiding. 

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who 
subsequently entertained a motion concerning approval of the 
minutes of the previous meeting. Mrs. Cox noted that on Page 20 
it should read that she said Commissioner Willner received a 
letter from the Longs on Harmony Way, rather than Commissioner 
Borries. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that with that correct1on 
the minutes of meeting held on April 20th be approved as 
engrossed by the County Auditor and the reading of same be 
waived, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

RE: POOR RELIEF APPEAL - PIGEON TOWNSHIP 

Larry Bushrod, 609 Blackford Avenue, Apt. B The Chair recognized 
Larry Bushrod, poor relief applicant, who stated he lives at 609 
Blackford Avenue, Apartment B. He had applied to the Pigeon 
Township Trustee for rent assistance and the request had been 
denied. He said the reason for the denial was because his 
landlord, Larry Norman, has an assistant manager who runs the 
complex-. The assistant's name is Jeffrey Perry. Mr. Perry's 
name was at the bottom of Mr. Bushrod's receipts rather than Mr. 
Norman's. The day before he {Mr. Bushrod) applied for 
assistance, Mr. Perry had applied for assistance with his rent. 
The Trustee said it looked like Jeffrey Perry was getting rent 
twice. Mr. Bushrod said Mr. Perry had no right to sign his rent 
receipts and he does have receipts with Mr. Norman's name on 
them. He said he is a month behind in his rent and he got a 
letter from Mr. Norman last night asking him to move out. He 
just has a temporary job with Health Skills and he guesses Mr. 
Norman isn't going to give him time to get his full check so he 
can pay his rent. 

Attorney Miller queried Mr. Bushrod concerning his job. He 
stated he is working for Health Skills; it is a temporary job 
that will work its way into a full time job. In response to 
query from Attorney Miller as to the nature of his job, Mr. 
Bushrod said he has three people on his list today •• He goes to 
their homes and runs errands for them and helps them straighten 
up their house. He reiterated he has a letter from Mr. Norman 
(which he received last night) asking him to move. 

The Chair entertained further questio~s. 

Commissioner Cox said she doesn't know whether she understands 
all of this or not -- and she may be a little confused. Do he 
and Jeffrey Perry rent the same apartment? 

I 

I 

Mr. Bushrod said it is an apartment house with four units. He I 
lives in an efficiency apartment in the back of the complex. 
Jeffrey Perry also lives in the same apartment complex in a front . 
apartment. Mr. Bushrod said he has lived there-for a year and 
has always had his rent paid up. He is behind now because he did 
not have a job. 

Mrs~ Cox asked, "Perry needed assistance and he went to the 
Trustee and he had the same address that you have?" 
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Mr. Bushrod said this is correct. Mr. Perry's rent receipt had 
Mr. Norman's name on it. His rent receipt had Perry's name on 
it, since he is the assistant manager. 

The Chair -entertained further questions. There were none. The 
Chair then recognized Bill Goff of the Pigeon Trustee's office. 
Mr. Goff. said he is representing Mary Lancaster, the caseworker 
in this particular case. He said Mr. Bushrod came in to apply 
for rent assistance and the Trustee had already paid Mr. Perry's 
rent and they refused to pay Mr. Bushrod's rent, because it 
looked like a sub-lease effect. That was the initial impact, so 
they refused him assistance on those grounds. They also refused 
him because he had-not signed up for the food stamp program, 
which is state statute (you must be signed up for it; it doesn't 
say you have to receive it, it says you must at least be signed 
up- fo-r it) • Mr. Norman, who is apparently the owner of the 
property, came in·last Friday and he gave the Trustee's office a 
receipt from Mr. Bushrod dated March 1st and the rent apparently 
runs from March 1 to March 31 -- where he had paid $90.00 and he. 
still had $10.00 due. For all practical purposes, according to 
the rent receipt he is not 30 days in arrears yet and the TrusteQ 
does not pay any rent until they are 30 days in arrears. Be also 
apparently left. the Trustee the same note that he sent Mr. 
Bushrod with regards· to wanting him to vacate the premises by 
April 24th. 

Attorney Miller asked if the note says why he wants Mr. Bushrod 
to vacate the premises? 

Mr. Goff gave Attorney Miller the note, and he read, as follows: 

"Due to non-payment of rent for the month of December, 1986, 
I see there is rio alternative but for me as your landlord to give 
you until 4/24/87 to vacate the premises. If further action has 
to be taken you will hear from my attorney. If you can come up 
with the money in full for March by April 4, 1987, then other 
arrangements can be made. I will not tolerate tenants with 
non-payment of rent. $5.00 per day late charges for every day 
rent is past due. This is your last warning. 

Larry Norman" 

Attorney Miller said that apparently Mr. Norman_is claiming the 
rent got past due last December and never·got caught up. 

Mr. Goff showed Attorney Miller another rent receipt for $90.00, 
which left $10.00 due. He again said the Trustee's guidelines 
state that rent must be 30 days in arrears. 

Mrs. Cox said Mr. Norman's letter indicates that Mr. Bushrod is 
behind in his rent. 

Attorney Miller said the letter indicates that he got behind in 
December of 1986 and he has been running consistently behind. 
But Mr. Bushrod has a receipt. It appears Mr. Norman is causing 
Mr. Bushrod the big problem, because he has an inconsistency 
between his orders to leave the premises and the receipt that he 
gave to Mr. Bushrod when he paid rent in March. On his receipt, 
it said from March 1 to March 31 $10.00 still due (because he 
gave him $90.0-0 rather than $100.00, and the rent is $100.00 per 
month). So Mr. Bushrod has a rent receipt that shows March rent 
paid except for $10.00 short. And the notice Mr. Norman gave Mr. 
Bushrod is saying his rent is really more than 30 days past due. 
So there is an inconsistency. He asked Mr. Bushrod when he began 
work for Health Skills? 

Mr. Bushrod said he started work last Thursday and he will get 
his first pay check on May 8th -- his first money from that job. 
He makes $3.50 per hour. 

Attorney Miller asked if Mr. Bushrod was signed up for the food 
stamp program in the past? 



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
April 27, 1987 

Page 3 

Mr. Goff .said he was not signed up as of last Friday -- he 
doesn't know about today. 

Attorney Miller asked Mr. Bushrod if he is signed up now? Mr. 
Bushrod responded in the affirmative. 

Attorney Miller said he has to advise the Commission that since 
there has been assistance given to Mr. Bushrod to this point in I 
time and he has now done what we had hoped he would do all along 
and that is, hope he would find employment £or himself -- it is 
going to take Mr. Norman a reasonable period of time to take any 
moves to evict Mr. Bushrod or make him move. He can't just come 
there and change the locks and put him out. He has to get a 
court order. 

Mr. Goff said, 0 It has been done before.n 

Attorney Miller said, "If he does, he is breaking the law. I 
can't say that he can't. I don't know Mr. Norman or how he 
operates.n 

Mr. Goff asked, 0 What if, in fact, we pay the rent and he doesn't 
accept it? He has indicated to us that he is going to make him 
move. If we pay the rent to him and he doesn't accept it, where 
does that leave Mr. Bushrod??n 

Mr. Bushrod said, "He is trying to get me out of. there anyway, 
because he is re-doing the apartments. Every time somebody 
moves, he redoes an apartment and raises the rent.n 

Attorney Miller said, "I'd say you'.d better find someplace else 
to live because it sounds like you're going to have to move 
anyway." 

Commissioner Borries said, "Mr. Bushrod, as a suggestion, the 
only thing I can say you could do -- it seems to me there is some 
confusion (as· you pointed out) about how much you have paid and 
how far behind you are. The Trustee has to go by guidelines that 
have· been-adopted by that Board .. I would suy that there seems to 
be some confusion as to how far behind you are and it would seem 
to me-that you have a right to ask Mr. Norman how far behind you 
are and to get some clarification on these bills. Then maybe you 
could go back and talk with the Trustee at that time. In any 
case, it appears you would have to be 30 days behind in your 
rent. But I think there is some real confusion concerning how 
much you owe him -- if he is talking one time of December and 
then it is $20.00 and -- did you pay in February? Did you pay in 
January?n 

Mr. Bushrod said he paid in January and in February, as well. It 
was subsequently noted that he paid $55.00 one time and $50.00 
another time., 

Commissioner Cox said, 0 He can't be current paying $50.00 at one 
time and $55.00 at anothe~ ••••• " 

Mr. Bushrod said he is all of this month behind and $10.00 past 
due on another month. 

Commissioner Cox said, "My concern is that this coming Thursday 
he is going to be hit for another $100~00 and he doesn't get a 
paycheck until May 8th -- and the young man is out working and 
trying to •••••• " 

Mr. Goff said he would think that Mr. Bushrod is $110.00 in 
arrears •••••• 

The Commissioners spent several minutes reviewing Mr. Bushrod's 
receipts. Mrs. Cox said, "They don't do.his receipts right." 
(She read the January and February receipts, their amounts and 
the period of rent covered according to the receipt.) 

I 

I 
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Mr. Goff said he won't be 30 days in arrears until the end of 
April. 

Commissioner Willner said, "Then he could talk to you again ." 

Mr:. Goff said., "There wouldn't be any problem then, if he is on 
the food stamp program." 

It was the consensus of the Board that Mr. Bushr:od should ask Mr. 
Norman for a reconciliation concerning his rent. Commissioner 
Bor:r:ies said it would seem that it would be Mr. Bushrod's right 
to go back either: to Mr. Perry or Mr. Norman and ask for an 
accounting as to exactly how far behind he is in his rent. If he 
has been placed on the food stamp program, he might want to talk 
to the Trustee at that point (if he intends to stay at the 
Blackford Avenue address after· April 30th) -- it seems this would 
be the best approach -- and maybe the matter could be resolved. 
In any case, he should receive from Norman or Perry a clear 
accounting of how much money he has paid in for rent, because the 
records are very, very confusing and it is hard to.determine how 
much he has. paid and how much he owes. Some receipts seem to 
duplicate -- they talk about $10.00 and then another $5.00. He 
believes the landlord owes it to him to give him a clear 
accounting of what is owed. Then he can come back and talk to 
the Trustee. If he has any questions, he may want to talk to Mr. 
Goff further concerning his suggestions at that point in time -­
and whether he is eligible for assistance. 

President Borries asked that the matter be continued. 

RE: REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SIDEWALKS IN AUDUBON ESTATES SUB 

The Chair recognized Aaron Biggerstaff, who said he represents 
Bud Bussing, the developer:, who cannot be present today •• They 
are requesting waiver of sidewalks in Audubon Estates 
Subdivision. Mr. Bussing stated that he, personally, has nothing 
against sidewalks. But in Eastland Estates (Sections B & C) all 
of the sidewalks have been waived. In the futu~e, he is sure Mr. 
Bussing would be willing to go along with sidewalks -- but 
aesthetically with this subdivision, it just wouldn't be 
conducive to the planning. He does not believe there are any 
sidewalks in the area period. Since this subdivision has been 
going on for eight or nine years (when the first section was 
planned)-- he would like to get in on the ground floor. The 
sidewalks in· this area would go nowhere in their opinion and he 
would like to have them waived. He is not trying to get around 
the rules and in the future when he does start a subdivision, if 
sidewalks are necessary, that is fine with him. But there are no 
sidewalks in this area and he is requesting a waiver. 

Commissioner Cox asked, "l·1r. Biggerstaff, in the extension o.f 
Covert Avenue, it will include having sidewalks along Covert, 
won't it?" 

Mr. Biggerstaff said,"I believe so." 

Commissioner Willner said, "That will be the back of the homes on 
Covert, won't it?" 

Commissioner Borries said he hasn't seen any constructed along 
there. He doesn't think there are any constructed in that area 
at this time. 

Commissioner Cox asked, "And this sub has no outlet on Covert, 
right?" 

Mr. Biggerstaff said there will be no egress/ingress off Covert 
Avenue at all. 

After brief discussion, motion was made by Commissioner Willner 
that the request be approved if, in fact, they close the Plaza 
exit onto Covert Avenue. He wants to make one of the lots bigger 
-- either Lot 19 or Lot ilO -- and then that closes it forever. 
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Commissioner Berries said that because of the size of the lots 
and where it is in relation to the City, if there is a street 
that is going to open on Covert, we are going to require that a 
portion (probably one side of Plaza Drive) have sidewalks along 
those lots •• 

Because Mr. Biggerstaff could not answer all the questions raised 
by the Commissioners and because the Commission would like some I 
clarification in writing, it was subsequently determined that 
this matter will be taken under advisement for one (1) week. 

Commissioner Cox noted that the Staff Field Report says he agreed 
to deceleration and acceleration lanes· in the area of Covert and 
Plaza Drive. That means that this is probably going to carry a 
lot of traffic in and out of this entire area and it most likely 
would need sidewalks in designated areas. 

Commissioner Berries said that Plaza Drive may be a connector of. 
which the Commissioners are unaware and that is why some 
clarification is needed. 

RE: REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF CURBS, GUTTERS & SIDEWALKS IN 
JONOTHON ESTATES SUB 

M·r. William Bivins was recognized by the Chair and stated he is 
present to request waiver of curbs, gutters and sidewalks in 
Jonathon Estates Subdivision. 

Commissioner Cox asked why Mr. Bivins is requesting waiver of 
curbs and gutters? 

l-1r. Bivins said he does not own any land adjacent to the 
subdivision and has no plans to extend it. 

Commissioner Berries said he hasn't seen this subdivision. He 
doesn't think it will be a problem to waive the sidewalks because 
of the large lots. However, the Board does have some concerns -­
they do not know what type of material he has on the road nor.the 
type of shoulders. The way the ordinance reads now they are 
requiring rolled curb and gutter. Mr. Bivins has not constructed 
the road at this time, has he? The Board needs to know these 
things in terms of knowing how much shoulder there would be, what 
the road right-of-way would be and the width of the road. 

Commissioner Cox said she, personally, has a lot of reservations 
about waiving curbs and gutters, unless there are any real severe 
drainage problems out there. 

In response to query from Commissioner Willner as to whether the 
drainage plan for Jonathon Estates has been approved, Ms. Behme 
said the drainage plan is on the agenda for today's Drainage 
Board Meeting. 

Commissioner Willner said Mr. Bivins will have to have an earthen 
ditch if he doesn't have curbs and gutters. Is he planning to 
have an earthen ditch? Mr. Bivins responded in the affirmative. 

I 

Commissioner Cox said she thinks that when they look at the I 
drainage plan they look at. it to comply with the ordinance -- and 
the ordinance requires rolled curbs and gutters. 

Commissioner Berries asked if the street will be concrete or 
asphalt? 

Mr. Bivins said it will be asphalt. 

Commissioner Berries said he doesn't feel the Board should 
consider this request for waiver- until they have seen the 
drainage plan. It seems we are putting the cart before the 
horse. He has no problems with the request for waiver of 
sidewalks, but he does with regard to waiver of curbs and 
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gutters. We-• re at a point where we have these ordinance and 
we've had some controversies generated and the way those seem to 
be is that ·the Board find out about them after the fact. He just 
doesn't feel he has enough information at this time to make an 
intelligent decision. He'd like to see how those shoulders are 
plan would work and if that is done, then he certainly would 

consider a waiver -- but he would need additional information on 
gutters. He asked if Mr. Bivins would want a motion on waiver of 
sidewalks only? 

Mr. Bivins responded in the affirmative. 

l4otion was made by Commissioner Cox that the request for waiver 
of sidewalks in Jonothon Estates· be approved, with a second from 
Commissioner Willner. So ordered. 

RE: REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF CURBS, GUTTERS & SIDEWALKS IN 
BROWNING ESTATES 

The Chair recognized Mr. Fred Kuester, who said he was present to 
request waiver of curbs gutters and sidewalks in Browning Estate~ 
Sub, which is owned by Mr. Bill-Wedeki~, Jr. Due to the size of 
the lots and the area in which the sub is located, they are 
requesting waiver of sidewalks. None of the immediate vicinity 
has sidewalks. 

Commissioner Willner said the Board has no problems with waiver 
of sidewalks, and thus he would move that the request for-waiver 
of sidewalks in Browning Estates be approved. Commissioner Cox 
provided a second to the motion. So ordered. 

With request to waiver of curbs and gutters, Mr. Wedeking said 
they had made arrangements on their plans showing the side ditcn 
to be rip-rapped (this is the shaded area) to prevent erosion. 

Commissioner Willner queried Mr. Kuester concerning the length of 
the side ditches. 

Mr. Kuester said they have one that is almost 400 ft.long and 7 
ft. wide. 

Commissioner Berries asked if they have received drainage plan 
approval? 

Mr. Kuester said approval of the drainage plan is on the agenda 
for today's Drainage Board Meeting. 

It was the consensus of the Board that the request for waiver of 
curbs and gutters should be-deferred until such time as the 
drainage plans have been approved for the subdivision and proceed 
at that point. 

Commissioner Willner commented, "One just has to go look at 
Pinegate and Redgate Road to find that the drainage system does 
work. This is matching another portion of the subdivision and he 
for one, would move that the request for waiver of curbs· and 
gutters be approved. There is one thing with the drainage system 
that is going to have to be addressed. When a subdivision comes 
in piecemeal, Section A, Section B, etc., at a time~ sometimes 
you don't look at the overall drainage plan and somewhere down 
the line we've g6ing to have to have some retention for this 
subdivision. That is three times more important than·rol"led 
curbs and gutters, in my opinion. This all goes down into 
Hillsdale and down into a creek with which we've always had 
problems and we're going to continue to have them, as more 
building occurs we're going to have more problems. That is the 
thing that we should address. Again, rolled and curbs and 
gutters are going to do nothing. These are big lots, they are 
engineered right, they are rip-rapped in appropriate places 
insofar as the wear and tear is concerned." 
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Commissioner Cox -said-, "The thing I see that rolled cu-rbs and 
gutters- can do is to protect the road and we have had some 
problems. Youall-will remember that when I came on the 
Commission Browning Estates came in for acceptance (I can't 
remember which section) and there were some problems out there. 
There was some cracking and alligator marks and washouts and this 
had to be taken care of before we could accept the roads. Am I 
not right, Mr. Wedeking? And this went on for at least a year 
and a half before we finally agreed on what needed to be done." 

Mr. Wedeking said they didn't have any major problems. 

Mrs. Cox said she thinks she's talking about Section A or B -­
the early days of the subdivision. The streets had been built 
perhaps two years before- Mr. Wedeking came in to have them 
accepted. She thinks she still has the notes pertaining to the 
matter. 

Commissioner Willner said the watershed empties into Pigeon Creek 
and Little Pigeon Creek. 

Commissioner Borries said he thinks Mr. Willner's suggestions are 
well taken, because the Commissioners get in a situation where 
they are accepting part after part after part -- and they do not 
understand the drainage situation. If the shoulders and 
everything will work in regards to rip-rap, he can give this 
consideration .. 

Commissioner Cox said that rather than the rip-rap and stuff (a 
lot of it ends up in the ditch rather than along the sides where 
it is supposed to be), maybe they would consider putting in one 
of these permanent concrete bottoms or something. 

I 

Further discussion took place as the Commissioners and Messrs. I 
Kuester and Wedeking reviewed the plans. 

Commissioner Cox asked who is going to maintain the ditch? 

Mr. Kuester said the Wesekin§s will until the County takes it 
over. 

Commissioner Borries said this is certainly a nice subdivision 
and Mr. Wedeking has done a good job. But the Commissioners just 
want to make certain we have a plan here that works. Maybe Bill 
Jeffers, Chief Deputy Surveyor, can review the plans and enter 
comments here concerning the side ditch so the Commissioners can 
give this consideration at a later date. 

RE: AUDUBON ESTATES SUBDIVISION 

Mr. Aaron Biggerstaff asked to speak again and he advised the 
Commissioners that he had talked to Mr. Bussing again. He said 
he will have ingress/regress off Covert. But he suggests he has 
no problems with sidewalks on Plaza Drive. But he wanted to know 
if he could have sidewalks on one side of Plaza Drive or 
Greencove. Secondly, he wants to know if they can put on the 
plat that the builder will be required to do the sidewalks as 
they develop and build the homes, rather than the developer. 

The Chair entertained questions. 

The Commissioners spent several minutes gong over the plans 
further. It was determined that sidewalks should be on the north 
side of Greencove and on the east side of Plaza Drive. 

Mr. Biggerstaff said he guesses his question now is whether his 
suggestion as to the builder being responsible for the sidewalks 
rather than the developer, could he go ahead and put that on the 
plat? 

Attorney Miller said that is really a question that Mr. Bussing's 
own counsel should address. However his opinion would be that 
lots can be sold subject to the requirement that the purchaser 

I 
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pay a certain amount toward sidewalk construction or construct 
sidewalks according to county requirements. Still, the county 
will look to Mr. Bussing. Mr. Bussing is going to have to 
guarantee them and-he is the one making the commitment. If Mr. 
Bussing sells a lot to Joe Smith (builder) and he says in his 
contract that Joe Smith can pay me $3,000 for the lot plus 
$300.00 that I have invested in sidewalks or the $380.00 that it 
is going to cost to build sidewalks, or you build the sidewalks 
before I give you the deed -- but let's place the burden on Mr. 
Bussing and let him work it out. 

Commissioner said when sidewalks are requird, they don't know 
where to have a curb cut or anything, and she thinks the Board 
needs to work with the developer. 

Attorney Miller said that is one thing. Another is that some 
people may want the gray stone showing on their sidewalks and 
they'd still be- up to specifications and others not -- but the 
county has to look to Mr. Bussing -- there is no question about 
that. 

Commissioner Willner moved that sidewalks 
side of Plaza Drive and on the north side 
sidewalk requirements for- all other parts 
Mrs. Cox provided a second to the motion. 

be required on the east 
of Greencove and waive 
of Audubon Estates. 

So ordered. 

Commissioner Borries said he doesn't know whether Bill Jeffers 
has had an opportunity to make any comments on this, but would he 
care to comment at this time concerning Browning Estates? 

Mr. Jeffers- said that with regard to Browning Estates Section D, 
he shares Mr. Willner's reasoning on detention at the upper ends 
of Pigeon Creek watershed. To that· issue he would say that 
unfortunately the only place· to store water or detain water in 
Section D is on Lot #1 where the main creek passes through 
Section D. Unfortunately, that is substantially downhill from 
where water should be detained, which is closer to the 
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. Unfortunately, also, we didn't require 
any detention in that section of the development when it came 
through seve-ral years ago. The drainage plans that will come 
before the Commissioners in a few hours don't show any detention 
and he can't think of anyplace other than Lot #1 where anything 
could be done -- and he is not sure exactly what can be done on 
Lot iL, because it is down in the main creek channel and not up 
in a hollow where water should be detained. Insofar as rolled 
curbs and gutters, he will say in all fairness that Mr. Wedeking 
and his father have developed several streets in other portions 
of this development that come as close as any in the county to 
matching the standard for roads without curbs and gutters. He 
hasn't seen any road constructed without curb and gutter that has 
uniform 6 ft.. shoulders and he has not seen any street: 
constructed in the county in the last several years without 
rolled curb and gutter or with side ditches that somehow or 
another someone didn't come along and mess up the situation by 
adding the driveway culvert in the wrong location, asking the 
County Engineer to let them build a ditch in front of the house 
-- in the case of Redgate Rd., one guy arbitrarily went out there 
and stuck a curb and gutter right up against the edge of the road 
in spite of the fact that it wasn't designed to have one, etc. 
Therefore, he happens to spare Mrs. Cox's opinion that all 
streets should have rolled curbs and gutters~ because in viewing 
streets without curbs and gutters all he sees is problems. But 
that is his personal opinion and the ordinance does allow for the 
waiver of curbs and gutters and the current county standards 
which were signed by the Commissioners in 1977 provide an 
alternate to roads with curbs and gutters. 

Specifically on Browning Road Estates Section D, the comments he 
has now will be brief, because he will either repeat them or 
elaborate on them again during the Drainage Board Meeting. Mr. 
Kuester has given the Commissioners a set of plans that conform 
to the county standards in 1977. In addition, he has added 
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rip-rap, which is required by 1984 Ordinance, for a slope that 
will be approximately 10%, possibly steeper, and he has supplied 
the Commissioners with information that he intends to put fabric 
under the rip-rap as previously requested by the County Engineer, 
which exceeds the county's standards. Again his comment would be 
that he doesn't like road without curb and gutter, but he has met 
the requirements for roads without curb and gutter. Two things 
that come to mind are that there is a sanitary sewer line running 
right down the middle of the ditch and if that needs maintenance, I 
they lose the rip-rap, and he would caution against requiring him 
to put a concrete ditch bottom there because we'd then lose the 
concrete ditch. He doesn't like the sanitary sewer line down the 
middle of the ditch, but he doesn't know where else he is going 
to put it., His only other comment (and he will make this comment 
on two. other subdivisions later in the afternoon) -- he doesn't 
think you can get a road in·without curb and gutter into a 50 ft. 
right-of-way if the ditch exceeds 1 ft. in depth -- because it 
just makes it in 50 ft. with a 24 ft. pavement with 12 ft. 
shoulder (6· ft •• on each side) -- that's 36 ft. and two (2) 7 
ft. ditches is 14 ft. That is exactly 50 ft. If that ditch is 
greater than 1 ft .. deep, the right-of-way required for road with .. 
that type of construction is greater than 50 ft. He just wants 
to point this out to the Commissioners. Likewise with Jonothon 
Estates, the cross-section shows 24 ft. of pavement and the plah 
shows 29 ft. Where is the other 4 ft. going to be? 

Mr. Jeffers said he would also caution the Commissioners that, as 
Commissioners, in charge of county highways, that whatever they 
approve they have to maintain. 

Commissioner Borries said that, again, this matter has to be 
considered at the Drainage Board. He would like to have a week 
to study this. Unless the other Commissioners want to -- he does 
not intend to vote on this day in regard to waiver of curbs and I 
gutters. Again, he has no problems with the waiver of sidewalks. 

RE: TRAVEL REQUESTS 

County Auditor·: Commissioner Borries said he has a request from 
County Auditor Sam· Humphrey for three (3) persons from the 
Auditor's Office to attend the Auditor's Conference to be held at 
the Holiday Inn North in Indianapolis on May 28 and 29. This is 
a State-called meeting. · 

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with 
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered. 

County Recorder: Robert Steele, County Recorder, is requesting 
permission to attend a conference of all county recorders as 
called by the State Board of Accounts. Conference is to be held 
on June 2 and 3 at the Holiday Inn Union· Station in Indianapolis. 

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with 
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered. 

RE: REQUEST TO GO BEFORE COUNCIL TO REQUEST ADDITIONAL 
APPROPRIATION - COUNTY AUDITOR 

Sam Humphrey, County Auditor, said he also has a request to go 
before Council for an additional appropriation for Word Processor 
to cover weed and sewer bills. 

Commissioner Borries asked how this will be paid? Will it be out 
of the Commissioners' budget or what budget? 

Mr. Humphrey said it will have to come out of the General Fund. 

Motion to approve the request to go before Council was made by 
Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So 
ordered. 

I 
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Attorney Miller advised that there are two additional matters 
falling under the area of. litigation that have arisen this week. 
There may have been a couple that have arisen during weeks that 
Mr. John has been present but which haven't been announced. 
However, we now have to additional matters of litigation with the 
Sheriff's Department involving Sheriff's employees. He believes 
the Commissioners were previously told about Mr. Swaim. Mr. Dale· 
Thene has filed an action for additional compensation and a Mr. 
Ronald Hartman has filed for additional compensation. The 
Hartman matter is very similar to Mr. Swaim's claim. All of 
these claims, to his knowledge, are betng filed by Mr. Charles 
Berger on behalf of the various members of the County Police. 
Mr. Hartman's claim is that when he was performing his duties, 
occasions arose when even though he was a· Corporal he would be 
required to perform the duties of a Sergeant and,, therefore, 
during those periods of time when he was performing the duties of 
a Sergeant he should have been paid at the level of the Sergeant 
who he was replacing. Mr. Swaim has made a similar claim. The 
county's defense through Sheriff Shepard is that these 
individuals knew that as part of their duties there would be 
stand-in periods. In Messrs. Hartman's and Swain' cases, Mr. 
Swain agreed in advance to become an Acting Lieutenant and to 
serve at Sergeant's pay -- so those cases are similar in that 
regard. Mr. Thene was a civilian employee who later became a 
Sheriff's officer and his case is somewhat different. In 
addition, the county has received and he has already done a 
significant amount of work on a claim for unemployment 
compensation involving a Miss Reherman out at 
Hillcrest-Washington Home and we have been required to do some 
background work that resulted from her appeal of a denial of 
unemployment compensation. Although they have already done the 
work, he is asking for the Board's authority under the litigation 
contract to continue this work, because it has turned into a 
significant amount of work. Other than this, he has nothing to 
report other than that which was reported in the Executive 
Session last week. 

Motion to authorize Attorney Miller to continue litigation work 
was made by- Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner 
Cox. So ordered. 

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL 

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr·. Bethel submitted copies of 
Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for period 
of April 20 thru April 24, 1987 ••••• report received and filed. 
Attached to the Work Report was the following Work Schedule: 

Gradall: North Green River Rd., Qak Hill Rd., and 
5408 Daniel Avenue 

Paver: Mesker Park Drive and Fisher Rd. 

Patch: 2617 Ashwood, Felstead, Newburgh Rd., Heckel. Rd., 
Old Henderson Rd., Newburgh Rd. and Marx 

Grader: 

Payloader: 

Mower: 

Ran Barricades 

Botto~s, Wallenmeyer, Armstrong, Maasberg, Old 
Green River Rd., and Burdette Park 

Clean Medians, St. Joe Avenue 

East Side 

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same 
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew ••••• report 
received and filed. 

- Repaired guard rail on Felstead 
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- Repaired head wall on Old State and Old Petersburg Rds. 

- Repaired and built wall on Pollack 

- Unstopped culvert at 1521 Heckel Rd. 

- Repaired bank on Old Petersburg Rd. 

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted- for the same period were 
the Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage 
and the Bridge Crew ••••••• reports received and filed. 

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Bethel. 

Commissioner Willner asked if we have roads closed at this time 
which are barricaded due to high water? 

Mr. Bethel said the high water is just about down. They are 
taking down their barricades and grading those roads·and gettiny 
them passable. 

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - ANDY EASLEY 

I 

Mr. Easley said he would like for the Commissioners to review the 
preliminary plan of a road improvement that is on Old Princeton 
Rd. The straightening of a curve where Darmstadt Rd. goes off 
--he· guesses some people refer to that as Hosquito Rd. Mr. 
Bethel said it is Outer Darmstadt. We need some right-of-way 
from the Stratts and that plan shows what we intend to do with I 
the right-of-way. He has been in contact with the Stratts and 
has developed an estimate of what he thinks this property 
we're probably going to have to pay for it. He'd like permission 
to have a claim prepared and a deed to obtain the right-of-way. 
It is a strawberry farm, which makes it a little more expensive 
as opposed to just pasture and there is also frontage in 
designated- area which could be sold as a horne site. He would 
like the Commissioners• permission to purchase the right-of-way 
for $6,000.00 He discussed this with Mr. Willner and, with his 
knowledge of property values in the area, he did not disagree. 

Commissioner Cox asked, "What kind of sign •••• " 

Mr. Easley said, "Do you remember seeing a great big sign saying 
'Strawberry' and our temporary construction is going to destroy 
the strawberries -- and it is a crop -- I'm not sure as to the 
life of a strawberry patch, but it is several years.". M-r. Easley 
said he was going to ask the Commissioners whether we should get 
an appropriation for this or whether we have something we could 
use for miscellaneous right-of-way purchase. 

Attorney l4iller asked, "This is temporary easement?" 

Mr. Easley said it is· perrnanent •• Actually there, is some I 
temporary and some permanent. There is a little over one-half 
acre of permanent ••••••• 

Attorney Miller asked, "You're not figuring in the destruction of 
the crop?" 

Mr. Easley said, "Yes I am; that is part of it. I didn't put 
down crop damages because it is not an annual crop. 

Attorney Miller said, "Well, in a condemnation action, the value 
of the property is determined based upon its highest and best 
years with those improvements in place that are in place and that 
should be taken into account in determining the value of that 
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portion. The fact that there is a permanent set of strawberry 
plants should all be taken into account in the value of that 
ground. The only ground you should be paying extra for the 
strawberry patch is what you • re taking tempora_rily, because it 
will have to be replaced by the owner. But you don't want to pay 
for the strawberry patch twice." · 

Mr. Easley said, "I have purchased right-of-way in the past for 
the county and I think that ••••• " 

Attorney Miller said, "I'm not saying you're not on the right 
road, I'm just giving you my thoughts." 

Mr. Easley said the temporary is compensating them for the 
strawberries .. 

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, they will be able to get that crop 
out this year. The strawberry crop comes on in June." 

Attorney Miller said, "Or Memorial Day." 

Commissioner Cox asked when we're going to start on this? 

Mr. Easley said that this is something we want to do this 
season, so we want to get moving on it. 

Attorney Miller said, "You can save yourselves a little money if 
you let them get the crop out this year." 

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, if this moves in two months, it 
will be quicker than we've moved anything else. I just figured 

... 

we were going to I'm still not sure I know what you're doing, 
Andy." 

Mr. Easley said the existing road comes up and makes a sharp bend 
-- and we're going to put a 1,100 ft. radius curve in here, which 
would give us about 50,000 on our capability. There will have to 
be a drainage ditch to catch the water from the culverts. With 
regard to the. old existing pavement, he has talked to EUTS and 
they concur that we could have this a merging lane and we 
wouldn't have to pave it because it is already paved. We'll 
stripe it --- a merging lane where people can come onto it and 
enter town or they could come out and go left or make a right 
turn at designated spot. we have decided that this is what we'd 
like to do. The semi trucks would need this much turn radius to 
get out of there. 

Commissioner Cox said, "If we're going to improve this 
intersection and improve the road, then we're going to have to 
look at the other things along there, too, I guess." 

Mr. Easley said if the Commissioners think this is a reasonable 
purchase price, he will prepare a claim~ 

In response to query from Commissioner Willner, Mr. Easley said 
he thinks he should ask permission from the Commissioners to go 
before Council and obtain an appropriation for this project. 

Commissioner Willner said the Commissioners could transfer monies 
and then replace it. 

Commissioner Cox queried Mr. Easley concerning the anticipated 
total cost of the project? 

Mr. Easley said there is approximately 600 ft. of curve we're 
going to end up with and other miscellaneous construction 
culverts •••••• 

Mrs. Cox interjected, "Is this going to be done in house?" 
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Mr. Easley said we had talked about perhaps having the excavation 
done by a contractor. But we've also talked about doing the 
paving in house; there isn't that much base to be placed -- and 
then it is a matter of a lot of· asphalt work. But h~ doesn't 
know whether he might be too high if he said we may very well run 
from $25,000 to $30,000 worth of construction on it. 

Mrs. Cox said this is definitely a dangerous intersection that 
requires attention. We don't have any right-of-way money 
anywhere that we can use to buy this? 

Mention was made of contractual services or awards and judgments 
accounts. 

Commissioner Willner said his personal feeling is that it is a 
bad intersection and we have never done any reconstruction and it 
needs to be done. He doesn't mind spending $6,000 for the 
property. He did.talk to Mr. Straat and he said he bought it 
seven years ago and gave $4,200 per acre -~ so we're in the 
ballpark. He doesn't know whether he will sign it for $6,000; 
that remains to be seen. And he would rather see the county 
crews do this project. But if the other Commissioners want to 
contract it out •••••• 

Commissioner Borries said he thinks the question is from what 
fund we'll get the monies. The possibility of funds from 
Judgments and Refunds was mentionede There may be enough out of 
that account. 

Commissioner Cox said that if it is going to be contracted out, 
we already have a fund in place for contractual services that we 
could go with. This is why she asked if it was going to be done 
in house. 

Mr. Easley said he thinks we probably favor doing it with our own 
forces. We may have to get a contractor's large backhoe to dig 
the ditch on an hourly rate basis. Maybe the gradall can do ite 

Mrs. Cox said, "We're in our paving season right now. If both 
gradalls are working, they are going to be busy and the· crews are 
going to be busy. This is why I asked about contracting it out." 

Mr. Bethel said he'd like to see the excavating contracted out 
and then let the county crews do the rest of it. 

Mr. Easley agreed. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the county offer the 
Straats $6,000.00 for the 1.4 acres and the .27 acres temporary 
easement to come from the highway dollars. 

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Easley where he got the 1.4 acres 
figure? 

Mr. Easley said from the sketch -- that is the total of the two. 

Mrs. Cox asked Mr. Easley how many sq. ft. are in an acre? 

I 

I 

Mr. Easley responded, 43,560 sq. ft. constitute an acre. He then I 
explained how he arrived at the 1.4 acres. He said they will 
write the· legal description to the centerline. Some of those old 
roads·out there-- there's never been any formal record of it 
being dedicated. 

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I would certainly say that what 
we're doing here is certainly going to improve that section of 
his property anyway, so it should be an even wash. 

The Chair then asked Mr. Jeffers for his comments. (Comments 
were not audible because Mr. Jeffers was speaking from where he 
was seated, rather than from the podium.) 



a 

c 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
April 27, 1987 

Page 14 

Mrs. Cox sa-id--she thinks the price -is reasonable and fair. 
She then provided a second to Commissioner Willner's motion. So 
ordered. 

Street Improvement Plans: Mr. Easley noted that the matter of 
approval of street improvement plans for McCutchan Estates I and 
Greenbriar Estates III was still pending. It was the consensus 
of the Board that they need additional time to review said plans 
before taking any action. 

"B" Street Underpass Plans: Commissioner Cox asked whether the 
plans on the "B" Street Underpass have been received from Hayes, 
Seay, Mattern &·Mattern?· 

Mr. Easley said he has not seen them yet. They were to have been 
sent via UPS last Friday. He will go check with his office, as 
they might have arrived since he last checked. 

Commissioner Cox asked if we have a recommendation from EUTS 
concerning the design speed for Orchard Rd.? She thinks this was 
also a holdover. 

Mr. Easley said he hasn't talked with Rose Zigenfus today and she 
just returned to Evansville from an out-of-town trip. He will 
check with her on this. 

RE: OLD BUSINESS 

Ordinance re Speed Limit on Harmony Way & Tupman Rd.: 
Commissioner Cox asked whether the County Attorney has sent over 
the ordinance re speed limit on Harmony Way and Tupman Rd.? 

Attorney Miller said that if· Mr. John has it prepared, he did not 
send it over via him. He has no knowledge of that. 

Commissioner Cox said Mr. John will probably bring the ordinance 
to next week's meeting. 

Joint Meeting/Commissioners & County Council: President Borries 
said he would note at this time that the Commissioners and County 
Council held a Joint Meeting on Thursday, April 23rd, regarding 
Hillcrest-washington Home. 

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS 

Wed. April 29 2:00 
Wed. April 29 2:30 
Wed. April 29 4:00 
Mon. May 4 2:30 

RE: CLAIMS 

p.m 
p.m. 
p.m. 
p.m. 

County Council Personnel Mtg. 
County Council Finance Mtg. 
Auditorium Advisory Board Mtg. 
Public Hearing re "B" Street 

Underpass 

Bowers, Harrison, Kent & Miller: Claim presented in the amount 
of $2,709.69 re series of litigation matters. Motion to approve 
claim was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from 
Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

Jones & Wallace: Claim presented in the amount of $325.50 for 
legal services rendered on previous litigation cases which are 
being closed out. Motion to approve claim was made by 
Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So 
ordered. 

Refund Check: President Berries submitted a claim for check 
refund. A payroll check issued to Maurice O'Connor in the amount 
of $370.32, which was lost for a period of time and recently 
found. Motion to endorse the check for deposit into th~ General 
Fund was made by Commissioner Cox, with a second from 
Commissioner Willner. So ordered. 
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President Borries submitted a check from the Veteran's Council in 
the amount of $2,821.40 for liability insurance at the Coliseum. 
Motion to accept check and endorse same for deposit into the 
General Fund into the insurance account was made by Commissioner 
Willner,· with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. 

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 

Prosecutor's Office (Appointments) 

Steve Owens Dep. Pros. $23,810.00 Eff: 4/17/87 

Hillcrest-Washington Home (Appointments) 

Donna K. Zachritz custodial Janitorial $5.20/Hr. Eff: 4/22/87 

Sheriff • s Department (Appointments-) 

Johnnie Paul Maver Process Server $5,968/Yr. Eff: 4/20/87· 

There being no further business to come before the Board at this 
time, President Borries adjourned the meeting at 4:25 p.m., with 
an announcement that the Drainage Board Meeting will be held 
immediately subsequent to the Commissioners Meeting. 

PRESENT: 

SECRETARY: 

COMMISSIONERS 

R. J. Borries 
R. L. Willner 
s. J. Cox 

COUNTY HIGHWAY 

Bill Bethel 

AREA PLAN 

Bev Behme 

COUNTY AUDITOR 

Sam Humphrey 

COUNTY ENGINEER 

Andy Easley 

OTHER 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

David v. Miller 

COUNTY SURVEYOR 

Bill Jeffers, 
Chief Deputy 

Bill Goff/Pigeon Trustee's Office 
Larry Bushrod/Poor Relief App. 
Aaron Biggerstaff 
William Bivins 
Fred Kuester 
News Media 

Joanne A. Matthews 
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